
 

 

 
 

BOARD 

OF 

COMMISSIONERS 
 

 

 

January 04, 2021 

7:00 PM 

 

 



Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners  January 04, 2021 

  Page 2 of 3 

 

 

This agenda is only a tentative schedule of matters the Commissioners may address at their 

meeting and all items found on it may be deleted, amended or deferred. The Commissioners may 

also, in their absolute discretion, consider matters not shown on this agenda. 
 

Special accommodations for the disabled who attend public meetings can be made by contacting 

the Clerk to the Board 24 hours in advance at 252-338-6363, Ext. 100. 

 

Please turn Cell Phone ringers off during the meeting. 
 

Agenda 
 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

BOC - Regular Meeting 

January 04, 2021 

7:00 PM 

Historic Courtroom, Courthouse Complex 

 

 Welcome & Call to Order 

 Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance 

 Chief Deputy Rodney Meads - Camden County Sheriff's Office 

ITEM 1. Public Comments 

It is requested that comments be limited to (2-3) minutes. The length and number of comments 

may be limited upon the Chairman’s discretion due to scheduling and other issues. 

ITEM 2. Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement 

ITEM 3. Consideration of Agenda (For discussion and possible action) 

ITEM 4. Presentations (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Sheriff Kevin Jones 

Recess to South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors 

Reconvene Board of Commissioners 

ITEM 5. Public Hearings 

A. Sale of Former Medical Building - Ken Bowman 

B. Text Amendment Urban Open Space - Dan Porter 

C. Preliminary Plan Camden Station Major Subdivision - Amber Curling 



Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners  January 04, 2021 

  Page 3 of 3 

 

ITEM 6. New Business (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Tax Report - Lisa Anderson 

B. Camden County Code of Ordinances Chapter 70 Revision - Ken Bowman 

ITEM 7. Board Appointments (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Tourism Development Authority 

B. Adult Care Home Community Advisory Committee 

C. South Camden Fire Commission 

D. Regional Advisory Council - Area Agency on Aging 

ITEM 8. Consent Agenda  

A. BOC Meeting Minutes - December 7, 2020 

B. BOC/BOE Joint Meeting Minutes - December 7, 2020 

C. Budget Amendments 

D. School Budget Amendments 

E. Tax Collection Report 

F. DMV Monthly Report 

G. Refunds Over $100.00 

H. Pickups, Releases & Refunds 

I. Community Services Block Grant 

J. Surplus Property 

ITEM 9. County Manager's Report 

ITEM 10. Commissioners' Reports 

ITEM 11. Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

A. Register of Deeds Report 

B. Library Report 

ITEM 12. Other Matters (For discussion and possible action) 

ITEM 13. Adjourn 



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Presentations 

 

Item Number: 4.A 

Meeting Date:   January 04, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Sheriff Kevin Jones 

 

Attachments:  

 
Sheriff Jones will be present citizen and staff awards. 

4.A

Packet Pg. 4



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Public Hearings 

 

Item Number: 5.A 

Meeting Date:   January 04, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Ken Bowman, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Sale of Former Medical Park Building 

 

Attachments: Performance Agreement-Final (1) (version 4) (PDF) 

 
Summary: 

Camden County acquired the former medical building in 2017 along with another property during a 

settlement with Trillium and Pasquotank County. 

 

The building sits on approximately 1 acre and has been vacant for about 5 years. Therapeutic Medical 

Services and Child, Youth and Family Services approached the County with an offer to purchase the 

property with a total investment in land, buildings, and equipment of approximately $372 Thousand. They 

further plan to employee 11 new full-time positions with annual compensation totaling $422K. 

An fair market assessment was conduct with a comparable property in Elizabeth City and the price is in 

line with what they are offering. 

 

Recommendation:  Accept the offer in accordance with the terms outlined in the Performance 

Agreement and authorize the Vice Chairman to sign the Performance Agreement and the County Manager 

to sign the Deed and other transaction documents. 

5.A

Packet Pg. 5



PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT 

 

This Performance Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into as of January 4, 

2021 by and between Camden County, North Carolina, acting by and through the Board of 

Commissioners and Helianthus Positive Behavior Supports LLC (the “Company”). 

 
WHEREAS, the Company has acquired certain real property in the Camden Medical Park, 

Camden County, North Carolina, containing the former medical building and approximately 1 +/-

acres, more or less, (the “Facility Site”), for the location of Therapeutic Medical Services and 

Child, Youth and Family Services (the “Project”).  The Company contemplates an investment in 

Camden County in land, buildings, and equipment of approximately $372 Thousand within Thirty-

Six Months (36) months of the acquisition of the Site, and further contemplates creation of 11 new 

full-time jobs by that time, all with an average total annual compensation, estimated at $422,000, 

with expected annual direct tax revenues upwards of $5000.00 annually, and proposes to maintain 

such investment and number of jobs for at least three (3) years; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County has determined that the proposed Project will benefit the residents 

of Camden County, North Carolina by stimulating local commerce and trade, increasing 

employment, and providing substantial direct tax revenues; and 

 
WHEREAS, the parties hereto acknowledge that the participation by the County is for the 

benefit of the residents of the County and therefore the Company recognizes its obligation to 

employ residents of the County whenever possible; and 

 
WHEREAS, the parties hereto wish to articulate and pledge their mutual commitments to 

one another. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, 

and other good and valuable consideration, the parties agree as follows: 

 

 

       

 
 

-1- 

dotloop signature verification: dtlp.us/GiBR-npUd-QHBC

5.A.a

Packet Pg. 6

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 A

g
re

em
en

t-
F

in
al

 (
1)

 (
ve

rs
io

n
 4

) 
 (

28
72

 :
 S

al
e 

o
f 

F
o

rm
er

 M
ed

ic
al

 P
ar

k 
B

u
ild

in
g

)

https://dtlp.us/GiBR-npUd-QHBC


ARTICLE I 

OBJECTIVES 

 

 

1.1 The parties hereby agree that, in consideration of the Company undertaking the Project 

with its employment opportunities, investment, tax revenues and utility revenues in the County, 

the County intends to provide the respective incentives set forth herein. 

 

1.2 The Company hereby agrees that in consideration of the provision of said incentives, it 

intends to develop and maintain the Project in the County in accordance with the terms hereof and 

undertake reasonable efforts to employ residents of Camden County. 

 
 

 

 

ARTICLE II 

THE COMPANY’S COMMITMENTS 
 

 
2.1 In consideration of the performance by the County of their Commitments set out in Article 

III, the Company proposes that the Project will result in the following: 

 

(i) An investment in land, buildings, and equipment of not less than $372 Thousand 

within thirty-six (36) months following the acquisition of the property and maintain such land, 

buildings, and equipment for a period of five (5) years (the “Maintenance Period”) commencing 

on the date of issuance of the Certificate of Occupancy for The Facility. 

 

2.2 The Company proposes to comply in all material respects with all federal, state, and local 

regulations, sewer ordinance, and requirements related to the Project, including other 

documentation in connection with all incentive programs as described in this Performance 

Agreement. 

 

 

 

       

 

-2- 

dotloop signature verification: dtlp.us/GiBR-npUd-QHBC

5.A.a

Packet Pg. 7

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 A

g
re

em
en

t-
F

in
al

 (
1)

 (
ve

rs
io

n
 4

) 
 (

28
72

 :
 S

al
e 

o
f 

F
o

rm
er

 M
ed

ic
al

 P
ar

k 
B

u
ild

in
g

)

https://dtlp.us/GiBR-npUd-QHBC


ARTICLE III 

THE COUNTY’S COMMITMENTS 

 

3.1 The County, acting by and through the Board of Commissioners, acknowledges that certain 

commitments are hereby made to the Company to induce it to develop the Project in Camden 

County, North Carolina. 

 

3.2 The County, pursuant to statutory authority, proposes to provide the following assistance 

in support of the Project: 

 
(i) the county will ensure all HVAC units are serviced and operating properly and 

(ii) the waste water connections are made to public sewer and the septic tank is 

decommissioned. 

 
ARTICLE IV 

REMEDIES FOR FAILURE TO PERFORM 

 

4.1 The Company will provide reasonable verification of its compliance with the maintenance 

commitment and the investment commitment as set out in Article II, Section 2.1 (i) herein. 

Progress reports will be provided annually on April 1, 2022, and covering the period through the 

end of the prior calendar year. With each such progress report, the Company shall report to County 

the amount invested and maintained by the Company in the prior calendar year. County pledges 

to the Company that it considers such information to be confidential proprietary information that 

is exempt from public disclosure under the North Carolina Freedom of Information Act and that 

such information will be used by County solely in calculating aggregate return on invested capital 

analyses for purposes of gauging the overall effectiveness of economic development incentives. 

4.2  Repayment Obligation: If the Company fails to meet or defaults on its investment 

obligation at any time during the Maintenance Period as set out in Article II, 2.1(i) of this 

Performance Agreement, then the County shall provide the Company with a written notice of 

default after which the Company will be given ninety (90) days following receipt of such notice 

to cure such default. If the default has not been cured by the end of the ninety (90) day period, the 

Company shall repay to the County that portion of the value of the incentives as set forth in 

Section 3.2 (i) (ii) that is proportional to the shortfall.  

-3- 

dotloop signature verification: dtlp.us/GiBR-npUd-QHBC

5.A.a

Packet Pg. 8

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 A

g
re

em
en

t-
F

in
al

 (
1)

 (
ve

rs
io

n
 4

) 
 (

28
72

 :
 S

al
e 

o
f 

F
o

rm
er

 M
ed

ic
al

 P
ar

k 
B

u
ild

in
g

)

https://dtlp.us/GiBR-npUd-QHBC


4.3  Determination of Inability to Comply: If the County shall determine at any time prior to the 

expiration of the Maintenance Period that the Company is unable or unwilling to meet and 

Maintain its Investment, and if the County shall have promptly notified the Company of such 

determination, the Company must repay to the County that portion of the value of the incentives  

as set forth in Section 3.2 (i) (ii), that is proportional to the shortfall. Such a determination will be 

based on such circumstances as a filing by or on behalf of the Company under Chapter 7 of the 

U.S. Bankruptcy Code, the liquidation of the Company, an abandonment of the Facility by the 

Company or other similar significant event that demonstrates the Company will be unable or is 

unwilling to satisfy the Target for the economic incentives. Such repayment shall be due from the 

Company to the County within ninety days of the written notice by County. 

 
 

 

 

ARTICLE V 

MISCELLANEOUS 

 
5.1 The parties agree to execute and deliver such additional instruments and documents, 

provide such additional financial or technical information, and to act with due diligence and good 

faith to comply with the terms of this Performance Agreement, and to work together in a mutually 

supportive manner to accomplish the realization of the Project. 

 

5.2 The terms of this Performance Agreement shall be subject to the approval of the County’s 

Board of Commissioners and the Company. 

       

5.3 All communications and notices regarding this Performance Agreement shall be delivered 

by registered first class mail, postage prepaid, or by nationally recognized courier for delivery on 

the next business day, or by telecopy (with such telecopy to be promptly confirmed in writing sent 

by mail or overnight courier as aforesaid) as follows: 
                                                                           

 

 

 

 

 

-4- 

 

 

 

dotloop signature verification: dtlp.us/GiBR-npUd-QHBC

5.A.a

Packet Pg. 9

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 A

g
re

em
en

t-
F

in
al

 (
1)

 (
ve

rs
io

n
 4

) 
 (

28
72

 :
 S

al
e 

o
f 

F
o

rm
er

 M
ed

ic
al

 P
ar

k 
B

u
ild

in
g

)

https://dtlp.us/GiBR-npUd-QHBC


CAMDEN COUNTY                                    County Manager 

P.O. Box 190 

330 East Highway 158 

Camden, NC 27921 

      kbowman@camdencountync.gov 

 

 

 

HELIANTHHUS POSITIVE BEHAVIOR SUPPORTS LLC   

Tiffany Michels 

108 Rocky Top Rd  

Moyock, NC 27958 

tmichels@helianthuspbs.com 

  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused its name to be hereunto subscribed by its 

Board of Directors, and the County has caused its name to be hereunto subscribed by the Chairman 

of the Board of Commissioners and the Clerk of the Board, as of the date hereinafter written. 

 

 
 

CAMDEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA  

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

BY:     
 

DATE Ross Munro, Vice-Chairman 

 
 

ATTESTED BY: 
 

 

Clerk to the Board                    

 

 

 

HELIANTHHUS POSITIVE BEHAVIOR 

SUPPORTS LLC  

 

                                                By:     
 

DATE Tiffany Michels, President /Owner 

 

ATTESTED BY: 
 

 

 

-5- 

dotloop verified
12/15/20 4:32 PM EST
QZ4E-LDBY-4X0N-V5R3Tiffany Michels

12/15/2020

dotloop signature verification: dtlp.us/GiBR-npUd-QHBC

5.A.a

Packet Pg. 10

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 A

g
re

em
en

t-
F

in
al

 (
1)

 (
ve

rs
io

n
 4

) 
 (

28
72

 :
 S

al
e 

o
f 

F
o

rm
er

 M
ed

ic
al

 P
ar

k 
B

u
ild

in
g

)

mailto:kbowman@camdencountync.gov
mailto:tmichels@helianthuspbs.com
https://dtlp.us/GiBR-npUd-QHBC
https://dtlp.us/GiBR-npUd-QHBC


 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Public Hearings 

 

Item Number: 5.B 

Meeting Date:   January 04, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Dan Porter, Planning Director 

 Planning & Zoning 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Text Amendment Urban Open Space 

 

Attachments: Agenda Summary Urban Open Space (DOCX) 

DiscussionItemVillageResidentialDistrict (002) (PDF) 

Text Amendment Urban Open SpaceOrdinance2020-

12-01 (DOCX) 

 
Agenda summary and supporting documentation attached. 

5.B

Packet Pg. 11



Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

        

Meeting Date:   January 4, 2021 

 

Attachments:   UDO Excerpts VR Zoning District & Open Space Definitions; 

Planning Board minutes; 

Recommended text amendment 

 

Submitted By: Planning Department  

 

Item Title:  Ordinance No. 2020-12-01 

Text amendment - Urban Open Space Definition 

 

Summary: 

 

During staff review and Planning Board discussion regarding Camden Station Subdivision open space 

requirements it appears that the “Urban Open Space” requirement in the Village Residential Zoning 

District may need to be revised to decrease the amount of impervious surface that results from the 

current UDO definition. 

 

The Planning board discussed at length as indicated in the attached minutes and is recommending 

changes to the definition of Urban Open Space. 

 

 

Recommendation: 

 

Motion 
To Correct Description of 151.7.5.6 (C) from "... allowable in active open space..." to 

"...allowable in urban open space..." 

 

Motion  
To Add Items 151.7.5.6 (B) (1) through (5) to 151.7.5.6 (C) such that they are left included in 

Passive Open Space Set-Asides and added to Urban Open Space Set-Asides so that they are 

included in both (B) and (C). 

 

5.B.a

Packet Pg. 12

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

g
en

d
a 

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

U
rb

an
 O

p
en

 S
p

ac
e 

 (
28

63
 :

 T
ex

t 
A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

U
rb

an
 O

p
en

 S
p

ac
e)



5.B.b

Packet Pg. 13

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

is
cu

ss
io

n
It

em
V

ill
ag

eR
es

id
en

ti
al

D
is

tr
ic

t 
(0

02
) 

 (
28

63
 :

 T
ex

t 
A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

U
rb

an
 O

p
en

 S
p

ac
e)



5.B.b

Packet Pg. 14

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

is
cu

ss
io

n
It

em
V

ill
ag

eR
es

id
en

ti
al

D
is

tr
ic

t 
(0

02
) 

 (
28

63
 :

 T
ex

t 
A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

U
rb

an
 O

p
en

 S
p

ac
e)



5.B.b

Packet Pg. 15

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

is
cu

ss
io

n
It

em
V

ill
ag

eR
es

id
en

ti
al

D
is

tr
ic

t 
(0

02
) 

 (
28

63
 :

 T
ex

t 
A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

U
rb

an
 O

p
en

 S
p

ac
e)



5.B.b

Packet Pg. 16

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

is
cu

ss
io

n
It

em
V

ill
ag

eR
es

id
en

ti
al

D
is

tr
ic

t 
(0

02
) 

 (
28

63
 :

 T
ex

t 
A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

U
rb

an
 O

p
en

 S
p

ac
e)



5.B.b

Packet Pg. 17

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

is
cu

ss
io

n
It

em
V

ill
ag

eR
es

id
en

ti
al

D
is

tr
ic

t 
(0

02
) 

 (
28

63
 :

 T
ex

t 
A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

U
rb

an
 O

p
en

 S
p

ac
e)



5.B.b

Packet Pg. 18

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

is
cu

ss
io

n
It

em
V

ill
ag

eR
es

id
en

ti
al

D
is

tr
ic

t 
(0

02
) 

 (
28

63
 :

 T
ex

t 
A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

U
rb

an
 O

p
en

 S
p

ac
e)



5.B.b

Packet Pg. 19

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

is
cu

ss
io

n
It

em
V

ill
ag

eR
es

id
en

ti
al

D
is

tr
ic

t 
(0

02
) 

 (
28

63
 :

 T
ex

t 
A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

U
rb

an
 O

p
en

 S
p

ac
e)



5.B.b

Packet Pg. 20

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

is
cu

ss
io

n
It

em
V

ill
ag

eR
es

id
en

ti
al

D
is

tr
ic

t 
(0

02
) 

 (
28

63
 :

 T
ex

t 
A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

U
rb

an
 O

p
en

 S
p

ac
e)



5.B.b

Packet Pg. 21

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

is
cu

ss
io

n
It

em
V

ill
ag

eR
es

id
en

ti
al

D
is

tr
ic

t 
(0

02
) 

 (
28

63
 :

 T
ex

t 
A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

U
rb

an
 O

p
en

 S
p

ac
e)



5.B.b

Packet Pg. 22

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

is
cu

ss
io

n
It

em
V

ill
ag

eR
es

id
en

ti
al

D
is

tr
ic

t 
(0

02
) 

 (
28

63
 :

 T
ex

t 
A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

U
rb

an
 O

p
en

 S
p

ac
e)



5.B.b

Packet Pg. 23

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

is
cu

ss
io

n
It

em
V

ill
ag

eR
es

id
en

ti
al

D
is

tr
ic

t 
(0

02
) 

 (
28

63
 :

 T
ex

t 
A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

U
rb

an
 O

p
en

 S
p

ac
e)



Ordinance No. 2020-12-01 

 

An Ordinance 

Amending the Camden County 

Code of Ordinances 

   

Camden County, North Carolina 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS as 

follows: 

 

Article I: Purpose 

 

The purpose of this Ordinance is to amend Chapter 151 of the Camden County Code of 

Ordinances of Camden County, North Carolina, which was originally adopted by the County 

Commissioners on December 15, 1997 as revised on February 4, 2019, and subsequently 

amended and as otherwise incorporated into the Camden County Code. 

  

Article II. Construction 

 

For purposes of this Ordinance, underlined words (underline) shall be considered as 

additions to existing Ordinance language and strikethrough words (strikethrough) shall be 

considered deletions to existing language.  New language of proposed  ordinance shall be 

shown in italics (italics) and underlined. 

 

Article III.  Amend Chapter 151 as amended of the Camden County Code  

                         which shall read as follows: 

 
  CHAPTER 151:  UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT 

7.5.6.ALLOWABLE FEATURES IN OPEN SPACE SET-ASIDES 

A. Active Open Space Set-Aside 
The following types of features are allowable in and credited towards active open space set-asides: 
1. Swimming pools, splash pads, and areas devoted to water play for children; 
2. Athletic fields and courts; 
3. Boat launches and swimming platforms; 
4. Club houses; 
5. Playgrounds and play structures for children; and 
6. Obstacle courses and exercise trails. 

B. Passive Open Space Set-Aside 
The following types of features are allowable in and credited towards passive open space set-asides: 
1. Walking, bicycling, and equestrian trails; 
2. Boardwalks; 
3. Gardens and greenway trails; 
4. Benches and seating areas; 
5. Tables, shelters, grills, and related picnicking facilities; 
6. Lawn areas and community greens; 
7. Lakes, ponds, wetlands (including CAMA wetlands), swamps, canals, and streams; 
8. Stormwater management facilities, configured as site amenities that include pedestrian access, 

gentle slopes of three-to-one (3:1) or less, and pedestrian elements such as paths, benches, and 
similar aspects to and around the facility; 

5.B.c

Packet Pg. 24

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ex
t 

A
m

en
d

m
en

t 
U

rb
an

 O
p

en
 S

p
ac

eO
rd

in
an

ce
20

20
-1

2-
01

  (
28

63
 :

 T
ex

t 
A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

U
rb

an
 O

p
en

 S
p

ac
e)



9. Piers and docks for fishing or viewing wildlife; and 
10. Undisturbed land. 

C. Urban Open Space Set-Aside 
The following types of features are allowable in active urban open space set-asides: 
1. Plazas and courtyards; 
2. Roof gardens; 
3. Indoor atriums open to the public; 
4. Outdoor dining areas; 
5. Fountains; and 
6. Areas devoted to public gathering. 
7. Walking, bicycling, and equestrian trails; 
8. Boardwalks; 
9. Gardens and greenway trails; 
10. Benches and seating areas; 
11. Tables, shelters, grills, and related picnicking facilities; 

 

Article IV. Effective Date 

This Ordinance is effective upon adoption. 

Adopted by the Board of Commissioners for the County of Camden this 4th day of 
January, 2021. 

 

ATTEST:  Tom White, Chairman 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

Karen M. Davis 

Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

 

 

 

5.B.c

Packet Pg. 25

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ex
t 

A
m

en
d

m
en

t 
U

rb
an

 O
p

en
 S

p
ac

eO
rd

in
an

ce
20

20
-1

2-
01

  (
28

63
 :

 T
ex

t 
A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

U
rb

an
 O

p
en

 S
p

ac
e)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Public Hearings 

 

Item Number: 5.C 

Meeting Date:   January 04, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Dan Porter, Planning Director 

 Planning & Zoning 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Preliminary Plan Camden Station Major Subdivision 

 

Attachments: Agenda Summary Camden Station Approval

 (DOCX) 

Ordinance Camden Station Subdivision (DOCX) 

 
Agenda summary and supporting documentation attached. 

5.C

Packet Pg. 26



Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

        

Meeting Date:   January 4, 2021 

 

Attachments:   Land Use Application/Preliminary Plan/Staff Findings/TRC 

inputs/Deed/Drainage Approval/Neighborhood Meeting Results 

 

Submitted By: Planning Department  

 

Item Title: Preliminary Plan Camden Station Major Subdivision Ordinance No. 2020-12-02 

(UDO 2020-06-43) 

 

Summary: 

 

RKrain LLC is requesting Preliminary Plan approval for Camden Station Major Subdivision.  The 

following items have been submitted with the package:  Land Use Application/Preliminary Plan/Staff 

Findings/TRC inputs/Deed/Drainage Approval/Neighborhood Meeting Results.  The Subdivision 

consists of 39 single family lots located on Tark Drive and Contractors Way in the Camden Business 

Park off Hwy 158. 

 

The Planning Board voted 5-0 to approve the rezoning request. 

  

The Planning Board also recommended (after discussion of Urban Open Space) to  

1. Accept the Offered Donation of Recreational Land for Open Space 

 

Recommendation: 

 

1. Motion for Consistency Statement as follows:  

 

- The proposed subdivision is inconsistent with the 2005 CAMA Land Use Plan in that the CAMA 

Future Land Use Maps has property identified as Industrial; and 

 

- The proposed subdivision is inconsistent with 2012 Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use 

Maps in that the plan identifies the property as Mixed Use Employment: however 

 

- The proposed project is consistent with the 2012 Comprehensive Plan Policies because the Plan 

did not actually rezone specific properties, but new zoning districts were created such that 

rezoning of property to moderate density within the Policy parameters in the Plan would be 

allowed. This property was rezoned in 2019 to Village Residential and is consistent with the 

policies of that zoning district 

 

2.  Motion for approval. 

 

- Ordinance 2020-12-02/Major Subdivision application (UDO 2020-06-43) as recommended by 

the Planning Board.  

 

3. Motion to Accept the Offered Donation of Recreational Land for Open Space 

 

5.C.a

Packet Pg. 27

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

g
en

d
a 

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

C
am

d
en

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 A

p
p

ro
va

l  
(2

86
2 

: 
P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 C
am

d
en

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 M

aj
o

r 
S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
)



ORDINANCE NO. 2020-12-02 

 

AN ORDER APPROVING  

A PRELIMINARY PLAT  

BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  

CAMDEN, NORTH CARLOINA  

  

UDO 2020-06-43 

 

Camden Station Subdivision 

 

The Board of Commissioners for County of Camden, North Carolina, having held public hearings 

on Monday January 4, 2021 to consider an application for a Preliminary Plat by RKrain LLC and 

having heard all of the public comments presented at the hearings makes the following Findings of 

Fact and draws the following conclusions 

 

 

 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

 

File Reference: UDO 2020-06-43 

Project Name; Camden Station  

PIN:    Multiple Contiguous 

 

Applicant: RKrain LLC 

Address:  105 Havenwood Dr 

                        Camden, NC 27921 

 Phone:  (252) 599-7185 

 Email:   

 

Agent for Applicant: Bissell Professional Group 

 Address: 3512 N. Croatan Hwy 

   Kitty Hawk, NC   

 Phone:  252-261-3266 

 Email: mark@bissellprofessionalgroup.com   

Current Owner of Record:   RKrain LLC 

 

Meeting Dates: 

 

7/30/2020        Neighborhood Meeting 

9/8/2020          Technical Review Meeting 

10/21/2020 Planning Board 

   

 Application Received: 6/23/2020 

By:  Amber Curling, Planner 

 

Application Fee paid:  $1950 Check #1029 

 

Stormwater Escrow paid: $6000 Check #1028 

 

Completeness of Application:  Application is 

generally complete 

 

Documents received upon filing of application 

or otherwise included: 

A. Land Use Application  

B. Preliminary Plan 

C. Deed 

D. Affidavit from owner 

E. Neighborhood Meeting Results 

F. TRC Inputs 

G. Drainage Approval Memo – Greg Johnson 

 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

PROJECT LOCATION: 

5.C.b

Packet Pg. 28

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 C
am

d
en

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
  (

28
62

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 C
am

d
en

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 M

aj
o

r 
S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
)



Street Address:   Contractors Way and Tark Drive in Camden Business Park,  

Location Description:    North Side of US HWY 158 in Courthouse Township 

 

 

REQUEST:  Preliminary Plan for Camden Station Major Subdivision – 39 lots - Article 2.3.16 of the 

Unified Development Ordinance. 

5.C.b

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 C
am

d
en

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
  (

28
62

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 C
am

d
en

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 M

aj
o

r 
S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
)



 

Vicinity Map 
5.C.b

Packet Pg. 30

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 C
am

d
en

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
  (

28
62

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 C
am

d
en

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 M

aj
o

r 
S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
)



  

Camden Station Subdivision located within the 

1 mile Buffer 

Courthouse Core Village 

Shown in Orange 

5.C.b

Packet Pg. 31

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 C
am

d
en

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
  (

28
62

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 C
am

d
en

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 M

aj
o

r 
S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
)



 

Zoning Map 

Village 

Residential 

Highway 

Commercial 

Light 

Industrial 

Light 

Industrial 

Working Lands 

Working Lands 

5.C.b

Packet Pg. 32

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 C
am

d
en

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
  (

28
62

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 C
am

d
en

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 M

aj
o

r 
S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
)



Not Located in WATERSHED 

5.C.b

Packet Pg. 33

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 C
am

d
en

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
  (

28
62

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 C
am

d
en

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 M

aj
o

r 
S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
)



Not Located within FLOODPLAIN 
5.C.b

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 C
am

d
en

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
  (

28
62

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 C
am

d
en

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 M

aj
o

r 
S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
)



Not Located within WETLANDS 

5.C.b

Packet Pg. 35

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 C
am

d
en

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
  (

28
62

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 C
am

d
en

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 M

aj
o

r 
S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
)



Suitability Map 

Very High 

5.C.b

Packet Pg. 36

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 C
am

d
en

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
  (

28
62

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 C
am

d
en

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 M

aj
o

r 
S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
)



 

CAMA Plan Future Land Use Map 

Low Density 

Residential/ Agriculture 

Conservation 

Industrial 

5.C.b

Packet Pg. 37

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 C
am

d
en

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
  (

28
62

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 C
am

d
en

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 M

aj
o

r 
S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
)



 

COMPREHENSIVE Plan Future Land Use Map 

Mixed Use 

Employment 

Village Mixed Use  

Rural 

Preservation 

5.C.b

Packet Pg. 38

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 C
am

d
en

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
  (

28
62

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 C
am

d
en

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 M

aj
o

r 
S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
)



 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

SITE DATA 

 

Lot size:   Approximately 24 acres    

 

Flood Zone:   Zone X  

 

Zoning District:  Village Residential (VR) (Rezoned with Ordinance 2019-03-01) 

 

Adjacent property uses:       Agriculture, Vacant, Residential, Commercial, Railroad 

 

Streets:                                   Shall be dedicated to public under control of NCDOT. 

 

Street/Subdivision name:     Subdivision name:  Camden Station 

Street Names: Tark Drive to be renamed Boxcar Way and  

Contractors Way to be renamed Santé Fe Street 

 

Open Space:                          Required:   Per Article 151.7.5.5 

15%  of  total 24 developed acres = 3.6 acres 

    25% of 3.6 acres is 0.9 acres which shall be active open space 

    75% of 3.6 acres is 2.7 acres which shall be urban open space 

 

Landscaping:                         Landscaping Plan required at Construction Drawing.   

 

Farmland Compatibility  

Standards:                               

  Per Article 151.5.5 

A 50’ wide vegetative buffer required along all agricultural uses.   

Indicated on plan. 

  

Recreational Land:               Per Article 151.6.1.13 Dedication of Land For Public Parks 

1452 square feet per lot -39 lots X 1452 sq ft = 56628 sq. ft or 1.3 acres 

 

 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL  ASSESSMENT 

 

Streams, Creeks, Major Ditches:   Sawyers Creek 

 

Distance & description of nearest outfall:  The property is located in the upper 

northern limit of the Sawyers Creek drainage shed as mapped on Camden County’s GIS 

System and is a part of a larger 80.7 acre drainage area located on the north side of US 158. 

The proposed re-subdivision (23.9 acres) was graded with drainage improvements installed when 

the Camden Business Park was built. The land remains vacant and is maintained with a grass 

5.C.b

Packet Pg. 39

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 C
am

d
en

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
  (

28
62

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 C
am

d
en

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 M

aj
o

r 
S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
)



groundcover. The rest of the drainage area (total of 80.7 acres) consists of a mix of a small 

amount of commercial, vacant lots, and agricultural uses. A network of swales / ditches drain 

the area from north to south where runoff is collected in a substantial roadside ditch along US 

158 which generally flows from east to west (although there is interconnectivity with the 

adjacent drainage shed to the east). Runoff is then conveyed to an outfall on the south side of US 

158 via three culverts spaced along the frontage of the drainage area, with the westernmost 

culvert conveying the bulk of the flow. 

 

 

TECHNICAL REVIEW STAFF COMMENTS 

 

1. Camden County Water.   Water Available 

2. Camden County Sewer.   Sewer Available  

3. South Camden Fire Department.    Reviewed with no comments. 

4. Pasquotank EMS (Central Communications).  Subdivision/road names approved as is.   

5. Sheriff’s Office.    Disapproved with comments. 

6. Postmaster Elizabeth City.    No response.  Did not attend TRC meeting. 

7. Superintendent of Schools.  No response.  Did not attend TRC meeting. 

8. Transportation Director of Schools. Approved with comments (see attached). 

9. Camden Soil & Water Conservationist.    Approved. 

10. NCDOT.    No response. 

11. Mediacom.   No response. 

12. Century Link.  Requested Developer be given contact information 

13. Dominion Energy.  Reviewed.   Sent comments to Engineer. 

 

 

 

PLANS CONSISTENCY 

 

CAMA Land Use Plan Policies & Objectives: 

 Consistent ☐  Inconsistent ☒ 

 

CAMA Future Land Use Maps has land designated as Industrial. 

 

2035 Comprehensive Plan 

 

 Consistent ☐  Inconsistent ☒ 

  

Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Maps has area designated as Mixed Use Employment. 

 

 

Comprehensive Transportation Plan  

 

 Consistent ☒  Inconsistent ☐ 

 

Property in Camden Business Park which abuts HWY 158 and internal road will be dedicated to public. 

5.C.b

Packet Pg. 40

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 C
am

d
en

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
  (

28
62

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 C
am

d
en

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 M

aj
o

r 
S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
)



FINDINGS REGARDING ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS: 

 

 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

 

Endangering the public health and safety? 

 

In staff’s opinion, application does not appear to endanger public health 

and safety. 

 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

 

Injure the value of adjoining or abutting property.    

 

In staff’s opinion, application does not appear to injure the value of 

adjoining or abutting property.    

 

 

EXCEED PUBLIC FACILITIES: 

 

Yes ☒ No ☐ Schools:  Proposed development will generate 26 students (.67 per 

household X 39 lots).  High School over capacity:  2019/2020 capacity: 

570     Enrollment:  599 – Capacity does not include modular units 

for Camden Early College  

 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

 

Fire and rescue:    Approved. 

Yes ☒ No ☐ 

 

Law Enforcement:  Not Approved 

 

 

Staff and Planning Board recommend approval of Camden Station Subdivision based on current 

by right zoning with the following recommendations: 

1.  The applicant must strictly abide by all requirements of the Unified Development Ordinance of 

Camden County, North Carolina, and must also strictly comply with all other local, state, and 

federal ordinances, laws, rules and regulations as one or more ordinances, laws, rules and 

regulations may apply to this development. 

2.  The applicant shall complete the development strictly in accordance with the approved 

Preliminary Plat and specifications submitted to the Planning Office of Camden County, North 

Carolina, and contained in the file titled (UDO 2020-06-43). 

3.  All lots shall be crowned to where the dwelling is located to an elevation at or above the 100 year 

flood as indicated in the Construction drawings listed as Building Pad Elevations.  These 

elevations shall be verified by a Surveyor or Engineer licensed to do business in North Carolina 

prior to final inspection for the dwelling. 

4.  No land disturbing activities shall start until the County Planning Department receives approved 

DENR Stormwater Permit and Erosion & Sediment Control Plan for the Development. 

5.C.b

Packet Pg. 41

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 C
am

d
en

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
  (

28
62

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 C
am

d
en

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 M

aj
o

r 
S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
)



5.  Developer and or Home Owners Association shall provide Camden County certification by a 

licensed North Carolina Engineer of compliance with approved Drainage Plan for Camden 

Station Subdivision every five years starting from recording of Final Plat in the Camden County 

Registry of Deeds.  

6.  Home Owners Restrictive Covenants shall include the following information: 

a. All requirements (to include Maintenance and allowable built upon area) listed under 

NCDENR Stormwater Permit.   

b. The re-certification to the County of the approved drainage plan every five years from date of 

recording of Final Plat. 

c. Maintenance of all open space, gardens and improvements throughout the subdivision. 

7.  If any of the conditions affixed hereto or any part thereof shall be held invalid or void, then this 

approval in its entirety shall be void and have no effect. 

8.  Constructions drawings to reflect turning radius of cul-de-sacs be minimum 43.5’ as requested by 

the Transportation Director of Camden County Schools. 

9.  Construction drawings to reflect bus stop with shelter as requested by the Chief Operations 

Officer of Camden County Schools. 

10.  On the North East side of development the Farmland Compatibility Standards (Article 151.5.5 

of the UDO) and NC General Statute 153A-340 shall be applied. 

 

The Planning Board Approval  

 

The Planning Board voted 5-0 to recommend approval of Ordinance 2020-12-02/Major 

Subdivision application (UDO 2020-06-43) with the following: 

 

Motion for Consistency Statement: 

 

- The proposed subdivision is inconsistent with the 2005 CAMA Land Use Plan in that the CAMA 

Future Land Use Maps has property identified as Industrial; and 

 

- The proposed subdivision is inconsistent with 2012 Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use 

Maps in that the plan identifies the property as Mixed Use Employment: however 

 

- The proposed project is consistent with the 2012 Comprehensive Plan Policies because the Plan 

did not actually rezone specific properties, but new zoning districts were created such that 

rezoning of property to moderate density within the Policy parameters in the Plan would be 

allowed  

 

- This property was rezoned in 2019 to Village Residential and is consistent with the policies of 

that zoning district 

 

 

 

5.C.b

Packet Pg. 42

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 C
am

d
en

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
  (

28
62

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 C
am

d
en

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 M

aj
o

r 
S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
)



Effective Date 

This Ordinance is effective upon adoption. 

Adopted by the Board of Commissioners for the County of Camden this 4th day of January, 2021. 

 

ATTEST:  Tom White, Chairman 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

Karen M. Davis 

Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

 

 

5.C.b

Packet Pg. 43

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 C
am

d
en

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
  (

28
62

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 C
am

d
en

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 M

aj
o

r 
S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 6.A 

Meeting Date:   January 04, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Tax Report 

 

Attachments: Tax Report (PDF) 

 

Recommendation: Approval. 

6.A

Packet Pg. 44



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 45

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

28
80

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 46

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

28
80

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 47

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

28
80

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 48

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

28
80

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 49

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

28
80

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 50

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

28
80

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 51

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

28
80

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 6.B 

Meeting Date:   January 04, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Ken Bowman, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Camden County Code of Ordinances - Chapter 70 Revision 

 

Attachments: Agenda Summary Repeal and Replace Chapter 70 

(003) (DOCX) 

CHAPTER 70 Revised Dec 14 2020 Clean Golf Cart

 (DOCX) 

 
Agenda summary and supporting documentation attached. 

6.B

Packet Pg. 52



Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

        

Meeting Date:   January 4, 2021 

 

Attachments:    Revised Chapter 70 

 

Submitted By: County Manager  

 

Item Title:  Revise Chapter 70  

  REGULATING THE USE OF GOLF CARTS ON PUBLIC STREETS 

 

Summary: 

 

In 2009 Camden County established an ordinance to allow the use and regulation of golf carts limited to 

one residential subdivision.  Other subdivisions were allowed to apply to the Board of Commissioners 

one at a time for use of golf carts in their specific subdivision. Over time multiple neighborhoods have 

made this request and the Board of Commissioners has directed staff to revise the ordinance to allow 

their use in any residential subdivison subject to specific permitting, licensing and regulations. 

 

The proposed Ordinance repeals the existing Chapter 70 and replaces it with a new Chapter 70  

Regulating the use of golf carts on public streets. 

 

 

Recommendation: 

 

Motion to: 

Repeal and replace Chapter 70 of the Camden County code of Ordinances Regulating the use of 

golf carts on public streets. 

6.B.a

Packet Pg. 53

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

g
en

d
a 

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

R
ep

ea
l a

n
d

 R
ep

la
ce

 C
h

ap
te

r 
70

 (
00

3)
  (

28
64

 :
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

d
e 

o
f 

O
rd

in
an

ce
s 

- 
C

h
ap

te
r 

70
 R

ev
is

io
n

)



Ordinance No. 2021-01-02 

 

An Ordinance 

Amending the Camden County 

Code of Ordinances 

 

Camden County, North Carolina 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS as 

follows: 

 

Article I: Purpose 

 

The purpose of this Ordinance is to REPEAL AND REPLACE CHAPTER 70 of the Camden 

County Code of Ordinances of Camden County, North Carolina, which was originally adopted 

by the County Commissioners by Ordinance. 2009-11-01, passed 12-7-11 and subsequently, and 

as otherwise incorporated into the Camden County Code 

 

CHAPTER 70:  REGULATING THE USE OF GOLF CARTS 
ON PUBLIC STREETS 

Section 

   70.01   Purpose, intent and findings 

   70.02   Definitions 

   70.03   Policy statement and liability disclaimer 

   70.04   Rules and regulations 

   70.05   Permit required 

  

   70.99   Penalty 

 

§ 70.01  PURPOSE, INTENT AND FINDINGS. 

A. The purpose of this ordinance is to promote the health, safety and welfare of 
persons operating golf cart(s) within Camden County Residential Subdivisions 
and side streets with posted speed limits of 35 MPH or less and to protect the 
safety of their passengers and other users of roads 

B. Pursuant to G.S. § 153A-245, Camden County may by ordinance regulate the 
operation of golf carts as defined in G.S. § 20-4.01(12a) on any public street, 
road or highway where the speed limit is 35 miles per hour or less within the 

6.B.b

Packet Pg. 54

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

H
A

P
T

E
R

 7
0 

R
ev

is
ed

 D
ec

 1
4 

20
20

 C
le

an
 G

o
lf

 C
ar

t 
 (

28
64

 :
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

d
e 

o
f 

O
rd

in
an

ce
s 

- 
C

h
ap

te
r 

70
 R

ev
is

io
n

)

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=jumplink$jumplink_x=Advanced$jumplink_vpc=first$jumplink_xsl=querylink.xsl$jumplink_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title;item-bookmark$jumplink_d=north%20carolina(camdencounty_nc)$jumplink_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:%2770.01%27%5d$jumplink_md=target-id=JD_70.01
http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=jumplink$jumplink_x=Advanced$jumplink_vpc=first$jumplink_xsl=querylink.xsl$jumplink_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title;item-bookmark$jumplink_d=north%20carolina(camdencounty_nc)$jumplink_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:%2770.02%27%5d$jumplink_md=target-id=JD_70.02
http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=jumplink$jumplink_x=Advanced$jumplink_vpc=first$jumplink_xsl=querylink.xsl$jumplink_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title;item-bookmark$jumplink_d=north%20carolina(camdencounty_nc)$jumplink_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:%2770.03%27%5d$jumplink_md=target-id=JD_70.03
http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=jumplink$jumplink_x=Advanced$jumplink_vpc=first$jumplink_xsl=querylink.xsl$jumplink_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title;item-bookmark$jumplink_d=north%20carolina(camdencounty_nc)$jumplink_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:%2770.04%27%5d$jumplink_md=target-id=JD_70.04
http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=jumplink$jumplink_x=Advanced$jumplink_vpc=first$jumplink_xsl=querylink.xsl$jumplink_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title;item-bookmark$jumplink_d=north%20carolina(camdencounty_nc)$jumplink_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:%2770.05%27%5d$jumplink_md=target-id=JD_70.05
http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=jumplink$jumplink_x=Advanced$jumplink_vpc=first$jumplink_xsl=querylink.xsl$jumplink_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title;item-bookmark$jumplink_d=north%20carolina(camdencounty_nc)$jumplink_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:%2770.99%27%5d$jumplink_md=target-id=JD_70.99
javascript:void(0)
javascript:void(0)


county that is located in any unincorporated areas of the county or on any 
property owned or leased by the county. 

C. Further pursuant to G.S. § 153A-245, Camden County may by ordinance require 
the registration of golf carts, charge a fee for the registration, specify who is 
authorized to operate golf carts, and specify the required equipment, load limits, 
and the hours and methods of operation of golf carts. 

D. The Camden County Board of Commissioners desires to allow the use of golf 
carts within the county in accordance with state law and local law while at the 
same time preserve and address the interest of public safety associated with 
such use. 

E. Camden County finds that unregulated use of golf carts on public streets and 
roads is detrimental to the safety of the citizens of Camden County. This chapter 
has been expanded to include the entire county.  

 

§ 70.02  DEFINITIONS. 

   For purposes of this chapter the following definitions shall apply unless the context 
clearly indicates or requires a different meaning. 

• GOLF CART.  A vehicle designed and manufactured for operation on a golf 
course for sporting or recreational purposes and that is not capable of exceeding 
speeds of 20 miles per hour. 

• Driver’s License: A valid license issued to operate a motor vehicle issued by 

North Carolina or any other state.  

• Financial Responsibility: Liability insurance coverage on a golf cart in an amount 

not less than required by North Carolina law for motor vehicles operated on 

public highways in the State of North Carolina.  

• Operator: Only persons over 16 years of age and holding a valid driver’s license 
may operate a golf cart on roads.  

 

§ 70.03  POLICY STATEMENT AND LIABILITY DISCLAIMER. 

This chapter is adopted to address the interest of public safety under which the 
provisions of G.S. § 153A-245 which provides counties with the authority to regulate the 
use of golf carts that have not been outfitted and registered as required by state law. 
Generally, golf carts (hereinafter "carts") that have not been outfitted and registered are 
not designated or manufactured to be used anywhere other than golf courses, and 
Camden County in no way advocates or endorses their operation elsewhere within the 
county. The county, by regulating such operation, is merely trying to address obvious 
safety issues, and adoption of this chapter is not to be relied upon as a determination 
that operation is safe or advisable if done in accordance with this chapter. All persons 
who operate or ride upon carts do so at their own risk and peril, and must be observant 
of and attentive to the safety of themselves and others, including their passengers, 
other motorists, bicyclists, and pedestrians. Camden County has no liability under any 

6.B.b

Packet Pg. 55

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

H
A

P
T

E
R

 7
0 

R
ev

is
ed

 D
ec

 1
4 

20
20

 C
le

an
 G

o
lf

 C
ar

t 
 (

28
64

 :
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

d
e 

o
f 

O
rd

in
an

ce
s 

- 
C

h
ap

te
r 

70
 R

ev
is

io
n

)

javascript:void(0)


theory of liability for permitting carts to operate in the county. The owner and operator of 
the cart is responsible for any liability involved in using the cart. The county does not 
encourage cart operation and does not represent that the operation of carts under these 
rules will render cart operation safe and without risk to the driver and passenger(s) of a 
cart. 

 

§ 70.04  RULES AND REGULATIONS. 

A) Carts may not be operated on or alongside a public road or street with a posted 
speed limit greater than 35 miles per hour. 

B) Carts may cross a road with a posted speed limit greater than 35 mph.  However, 
once this segment of road has been traversed, the golf cart is still required to travel 
only on or along a roadway with a speed limit of 35 mph or less.  Golf carts must 
cross in a manner that is the most direct route in order to decrease crossing 
distance, i.e. no riding along a road or crossing at an angle.  Under no circumstance 
is a golf cart allowed to cross a control access facility other than at bridges which 
cross over or under a control access facility. 

C) Carts that are not equipped and registered as required by the State Motor Vehicle 
Law may only operate on public streets and roads within the County of Camden as 
set forth herein and in accordance with these rules and regulations. Operation of 
carts in violation of these rules and regulations shall be subject to the penalty 
provisions of § 70.99 or, in egregious cases, may constitute reckless driving as 
defined in the North Carolina General Statutes. 

D) All carts operated on the streets must have a valid and visible permit sticker from the 
Camden County Tax Office. A yearly fee as established by the Camden County Fee 
Schedule on a per cart basis will be charged by the Camden County Tax Office for a 
permit sticker. There will be no prorated registrations nor will there be any refunds 
issued. A 31-day re-registration period for all previously registered golf carts will be 
permitted during the month of January each year for an annual registration charge 
per the Camden Fee Schedule. Owners re-registering after January 31 of each year 
will be considered expired until re-registered and not permitted to use the golf carts 
in the associated areas. Driving a golf cart without a current registration will result in 
a fine as determined by the Camden County Fee Schedule. A list of all registrations 
will be maintained by the Camden County Tax Office and the Camden County 
Sheriff’s Office. The golf cart owner is responsible for maintaining their registration, 
no notices will be mailed. If a golf cart is purchased during the calendar year, the fee 
will not be prorated and would be the amount established as per the Camden Fee 
Schedule. 

E) Any person who operates a golf cart on public streets and roads must adhere to all 
applicable State and local laws, regulations and ordinances, including but not limited 
to  
1) all traffic rules and regulations adopted by the State of North Carolina and the 

Camden County which governs the operation of motor vehicles  

6.B.b

Packet Pg. 56

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

H
A

P
T

E
R

 7
0 

R
ev

is
ed

 D
ec

 1
4 

20
20

 C
le

an
 G

o
lf

 C
ar

t 
 (

28
64

 :
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

d
e 

o
f 

O
rd

in
an

ce
s 

- 
C

h
ap

te
r 

70
 R

ev
is

io
n

)

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=jumplink$jumplink_x=Advanced$jumplink_vpc=first$jumplink_xsl=querylink.xsl$jumplink_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title;item-bookmark$jumplink_d=north%20carolina(camdencounty_nc)$jumplink_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:%2770.99%27%5d$jumplink_md=target-id=JD_70.99
javascript:void(0)


2) those banning the possession and use of alcoholic beverages, and all other 
illegal drugs.  In addition, no golf cart containing any open container of alcohol 
shall be operated on public roads 

F) Any person who operates a golf cart must be responsible for all liability associated 
with operation of the golf cart and must have liability insurance coverage which will 
cover the use of a golf cart in an amount not less than required by North Carolina 
law for motor vehicles operated on public highways in the State of North Carolina  

G) Drivers of carts shall stay to the far right of the traveled portion of the road and yield 
to the right-of-way to overtaking motor vehicles and pedestrians.  

H) Golf carts without lights may be operated only during daylight hours.  Golf carts 
meeting the requirements set forth below may operate at any time:  
1) Golf carts having two (2) operating headlights, one on each side of the front of 

the golf cart and  
2) two (2) operating tail lights, one on each side of the rear of the cart,  
3) all four (4) lights must be visible from a distance of 500 feet; and  
4) If a mechanical turn signal indicator is not installed, then hand signals are 

required for turns.   
I) Golf carts must have basic equipment supplied by the manufacturer, including a 

vehicle identification or serial number.  Such equipment must include all safety 

devices as installed by said manufacturer, including rear view mirror and a rear 

triangle reflector of the same type required by North Carolina law. Persons are 

prohibited from standing on a cart while the cart is in operation.  

J) The maximum occupancy of a cart traveling on the street is one person per bucket 

seat or two people per bench seat. The operator shall not allow passengers to ride 

on any part of a golf cart not designed to carry passengers, such as the part of the 

golf cart designed to carry golf bags.  

K) Children must be properly seated while a cart is in motion and may not be 
transported in a negligent manner. 

L) If the cart is equipped with seat belts, all passengers are to wear the seat belts at all 
times the cart is in motion. 

M) A driver must be at least 16 years old and possess a valid state-issued driver's 
license. Cart operators must carry their driver's license on their person at all times 
while operating a cart on public streets and roads in the county. 

N) No cart may be operated at a speed greater than reasonable and prudent for the 
existing conditions, and in no instance at a speed greater than 20 miles per hour. 

O) No cart may be operated in a careless or reckless manner. 
P) Carts shall not be operated or parked on sidewalks. 
Q) Carts shall not be operated on private property without the permission and consent 

of the property owner, property manager or home owner's association, if applicable. 
R) The Camden County Sheriff's Office interpretation of the above rules and regulations 

are final. The Camden County Sheriff's Office will maintain its interpretation in a 
written and published manner. 

  

6.B.b

Packet Pg. 57

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

H
A

P
T

E
R

 7
0 

R
ev

is
ed

 D
ec

 1
4 

20
20

 C
le

an
 G

o
lf

 C
ar

t 
 (

28
64

 :
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

d
e 

o
f 

O
rd

in
an

ce
s 

- 
C

h
ap

te
r 

70
 R

ev
is

io
n

)



§ 70.05  PERMIT REQUIRED. 

A. Cart owners must complete the Golf Cart Owner Registration Form and show proof 
of license to drive to the Camden County Tax Office. The completed forms will be 
maintained by the Camden County Tax Office and the Camden County Sheriff's 
Office. Visible proof of compliance must be attached to a conspicuous place on the 
cart. 

B. The Camden County Tax Office is hereby authorized to issue a permit for a fee as 
published by the Camden County Fee Schedule to all appropriate applicants, one 
per cart. When issuing this permit. Camden County Tax Office staff shall require the 
applicant to sign a statement certifying he or she has read the provisions on the 
county's ordinance on cart usage as set forth in this chapter. 

C. Each owner must have proof of ownership, and liability insurance, and a completed 
Waiver of Liability, releasing Camden County from liability that may arise as a result 
of operation of a golf cart inside Camden County.  These documents must be in the 
golf cart at all times while in operation on public roads.  

D. All golf carts must meet the requirements or minimum standards of safety equipment 
as set forth above in this Ordinance 

E. Lost or Stolen Permit/Stickers are the responsibility of the owner and must be 
replaced before the golf cart is operated on a public road.  

§ 70.99  PENALTY. 

A. A violation and/or repeated violations of this chapter may result in any combination 
of the following: a fine, loss of privileges (loss of permit sticker) for up to one year 
and/or revocation of said permit, and/or prosecution in a court of law. 

B. Violation of this chapter shall be a misdemeanor and punished with a fine as 
published by the Camden County Fee Schedule for each violation, provided, 
however, that operating a cart under the influence of an impairing substance, alcohol 
or drugs, on a public road or highway is not a violation of this chapter, but a violation 
of state law, and is publishable as provided in G.S. Chapter 20. 

C. The Camden County Tax Office retains the right to refuse to issue any permit. The 
Camden County Sheriff retains the right to revoke any permit for up to 12 months in 
the event of repeated violations of this chapter or conviction of driving while impaired 
and/or reckless driving. 

  

6.B.b

Packet Pg. 58

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

H
A

P
T

E
R

 7
0 

R
ev

is
ed

 D
ec

 1
4 

20
20

 C
le

an
 G

o
lf

 C
ar

t 
 (

28
64

 :
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

d
e 

o
f 

O
rd

in
an

ce
s 

- 
C

h
ap

te
r 

70
 R

ev
is

io
n

)

javascript:void(0)


Effective Date 

This Ordinance is effective upon adoption. 

Adopted by the Board of Commissioners for the County of Camden this 4th day of 
January, 2021. 

      
ATTEST:  Tom White, Chairman 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

Karen M. Davis 
Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

 

 

6.B.b

Packet Pg. 59

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

H
A

P
T

E
R

 7
0 

R
ev

is
ed

 D
ec

 1
4 

20
20

 C
le

an
 G

o
lf

 C
ar

t 
 (

28
64

 :
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

d
e 

o
f 

O
rd

in
an

ce
s 

- 
C

h
ap

te
r 

70
 R

ev
is

io
n

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Board Appointments 

 

Item Number: 7.A 

Meeting Date:   January 04, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Tourism Development Authority 

 

Attachments:  

 
Summary: 

It is the recommendation of staff that Dismal Swamp Welcome Center Director Sarah Hill be 

appointed to the Tourism Development Authority as Chair to replace outgoing Chair, Donna 

Stewart. 

Recommendation: 

Approval. 

7.A

Packet Pg. 60



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Board Appointments 

 

Item Number: 7.B 

Meeting Date:   January 04, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Adult Care Home Community Advisory Committee 

 

Attachments:  

 
Summary: 

It is the request of the Adult Care Home Community Advisory Committee that Tammie Krauss 

be reappointed for an additional term. 

Recommendation: 

Approval. 

7.B

Packet Pg. 61



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Board Appointments 

 

Item Number: 7.C 

Meeting Date:   January 04, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   South Camden Fire Commission 

 

Attachments:  

 
Summary: 

It is the request of the South Camden Fire Commission that Zenas Jennings be reappointed for 

an additional term. 

Recommendation: 

Approval. 

7.C

Packet Pg. 62



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Board Appointments 

 

Item Number: 7.D 

Meeting Date:   January 04, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Regional Advisory Council - Area Agency on Aging 

 

Attachments: Penny Leary Smith_Regional Advisory Council (PDF) 

 
Summary: 

See attached request to appoint Penny Leary Smith to the Area Agency on Aging Regional 

Advisory Council. 

7.D

Packet Pg. 63



7.D.a

Packet Pg. 64

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

en
n

y 
L

ea
ry

 S
m

it
h

_R
eg

io
n

al
 A

d
vi

so
ry

 C
o

u
n

ci
l  

(2
86

6 
: 

R
eg

io
n

al
 A

d
vi

so
ry

 C
o

u
n

ci
l -

 A
re

a 
A

g
en

cy
 o

n
 A

g
in

g
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.A 

Meeting Date:   January 04, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   BOC Meeting Minutes - December 7, 2020 

 

Attachments: bocminutes_120720 (DOCX) 

 

8.A

Packet Pg. 65



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 7, 2020 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 7, 2020 

Organizational & Regular Meeting – 8:30 AM 

Historic Courtroom - Camden, North Carolina 

 

MINUTES 

The Organizational & Regular meeting of the Camden County Board of Commissioners was held on December 7, 

2020 in the Historic Courtroom, Camden, North Carolina.   

 

WELCOME & CALL TO ORDER  

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Tom White at 8:30 AM.  Also Present: Vice Chairman Clayton Riggs, 

Commissioners Randy Krainiak, Ross Munro and Commissioner Elect Tiffney White.  Commissioner Garry Meiggs 

was absent.   

 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Pastor Marc O’Neal gave the invocation and led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

ITEM 1.  CONSIDERATION OF AGENDA        

 

Motion to approve the agenda as presented.  

RESULT: PASSED [4-0] 

MOVER: Randy Krainiak 

AYES: Tom White, Randy Krainiak, Clayton Riggs, Ross Munro 

ABSENT: Garry Meiggs 

 

ITEM 2.  SPECIAL RECOGNITION         

 

• County Manager Ken Bowman recognized Emergency Management Director Christy Saunders, as she is 

retiring in December.  Mrs. Saunders will be presented with a gift basket at a later date as she was unable to 

be present.   

• Mr. Bowman and the Board recognized Dismal Swamp Welcome Center Director Donna Stewart for her 

retirement in December. 

 

ITEM 3.  SWEARING-IN CEREMONY         

 

The Honorable Judge Eula E. Reid administered oaths of office to the following: 

• Commissioner Randy Krainiak 

• Commissioner Ross Munro 

• Commissioner Elect Tiffney White 

• Register of Deeds Tammie Krauss 

• Board of Education Member Kevin Heath 

• Board of Education Member Christian Overton 

• Soil & Water Conservation District Supervisor Don Lee Keaton 

 

Upon taking the oath of office, Commissioner Tiffney White joined the Board at the dais.   

 

ITEM 4.  ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN TO THE BOARD       

 

County Manager Ken Bowman opened the floor for nominations to Chairman to the Board. 

 

Commissioner Randy Krainiak nominated Tom White to remain as Chairman.  There being no further nominations, 

Tom White was elected as Chairman to the Board by acclamation. 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 66

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
07

20
  (

28
60

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
D

ec
em

b
er

 7
, 2

02
0)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 7, 2020 

 

ITEM 5.  ELECTION OF VICE CHAIRMAN TO THE BOARD      

 

Chairman Tom White opened the floor for nominations for Vice Chairman to the Board.   

 

Commissioner Randy Krainiak nominated Commissioner Ross Munro to serve as Vice Chairman.  There were no 

additional nominations. 

 

Motion to appoint Ross Munro as Vice Chairman to the Board. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Randy Krainiak 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

ITEM 6.  APPROVAL OF BONDS         

Bond approval for the following: 

 

• Board of Commissioners - County of Camden 

• Finance Officer - County of Camden 

• Finance Officer - Camden Tourism Development Authority 

• Finance Officer - Courthouse/Shiloh Fire Commission 

• Finance Officer - South Mills Fire Commission 

• Finance Officer - Joyce Creek Drainage District 

• Finance Officer - South Camden Water & Sewer District 

• Register of Deeds - County of Camden 

• Sheriff - County of Camden 

• Tax Assessor & Collector - County of Camden 

 

Motion to approve the bonds as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

ITEM 7.  2021 MEETING CALENDAR         

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 67

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
07

20
  (

28
60

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
D

ec
em

b
er

 7
, 2

02
0)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 7, 2020 

 

Motion to approve the 2021 Meeting Calendar as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

ITEM 8.  2021 STATE HOLIDAY SCHEDULE        

 

 
Motion to approve the 2021 State Holiday Schedule as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

ITEM 9.  PUBLIC COMMENTS          

 

Melissa Linton of South Mills addressed the Board.  Ms. Linton expressed her concern in regard to the approval of 

the South Mills Landing Preliminary Plan.  Her concerns included the following: 

• Continued flooding in the area 

• The current rules in place in regard to development 

• Inappropriate comments made by commissioners at the November meeting  

Ms. Linton also addressed Commissioner Tiffney White and requested that in making future decisions, that 

consideration be given to what is best for the citizens.   

 

ITEM 10.  CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE STATEMENT     

 

Clerk to the Board Karen Davis read the Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement. 

 

ITEM 11.  PRESENTATIONS          

 

A. Camden TDA Photo Contest 

 

Donna Stewart recognized the winners of the Camden Tourism Development Authority Photo Contest.  There were 

57 entries from 18 different individuals in five categories: Land & Water Scapes, Wildlife, Architecture, People and 

Wildcard.  Contest judges were Ken Ferguson, Amanda Madeira, Amy Gibbons, Kayla Eller and Ross Munro.  

Winning photos will be displayed in County office buildings and used for promotional purposes.   

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 68

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
07

20
  (

28
60

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
D

ec
em

b
er

 7
, 2

02
0)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 7, 2020 

   
 

Mrs. Stewart also recognized outgoing Commissioner Garry Meiggs for his contributions to the Tourism 

Development Authority during his tenure. 

 

ITEM 12.  NEW BUSINESS          

 

A. Tax Reports – Lisa Anderson 

 

September 2020 Report 

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 69

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
07

20
  (

28
60

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
D

ec
em

b
er

 7
, 2

02
0)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 7, 2020 

 
 

 
 

30 Largest Unpaid – Real 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 70

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
07

20
  (

28
60

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
D

ec
em

b
er

 7
, 2

02
0)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 7, 2020 

30 Oldest Unpaid – Real 

 
30 Largest Unpaid – Personal 

 
 

30 Oldest Unpaid – Personal 

 
 

 

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 71

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
07

20
  (

28
60

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
D

ec
em

b
er

 7
, 2

02
0)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 7, 2020 

October 2020 Report 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 72

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
07

20
  (

28
60

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
D

ec
em

b
er

 7
, 2

02
0)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 7, 2020 

30 Largest Unpaid – Real 

 
 

30 Oldest Unpaid – Real 

 
 

30 Largest Unpaid – Personal 

 
 

 

 

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 73

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
07

20
  (

28
60

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
D

ec
em

b
er

 7
, 2

02
0)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 7, 2020 

30 Oldest Unpaid – Personal 

 
 

Motion to approve the tax reports as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

B. Resolution Declaring Bond Referendum Result 

 

   
 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 74

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
07

20
  (

28
60

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
D

ec
em

b
er

 7
, 2

02
0)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 7, 2020 

   
 

 
 

Motion to adopt the Resolution Declaring the Result of the Bond Referendum held in the County of Camden, 

North Carolina on November 3, 2020 Upon the Question of Approving $33,000,000 School Bonds. 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 75

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
07

20
  (

28
60

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
D

ec
em

b
er

 7
, 2

02
0)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 7, 2020 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

C. Resolution Appointing Deputy Finance Officer – Ken Bowman 

 

 
 

Motion to adopt the Resolution Appointing Sheri Stasko as Deputy Finance Officer.   

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

D. Camden Commerce Park Road Extension Bid Award – Ken Bowman 

 

Two estimates were received for the asphalt road extension at the Commerce Park leading to the property purchased 

by Southeastern Equipment.  The lower bid was submitted by Barnhill Contracting Company. 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 76

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
07

20
  (

28
60

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
D

ec
em

b
er

 7
, 2

02
0)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 7, 2020 

 
 

Motion to approve bid award to low bidder Barnhill Contracting Company for the Camden Commerce Park 

Road Extension. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

E. Commerce Park Berm Bid Award – Ken Bowman 

 

In order to improve marketability of the lots at the front of Camden Commerce Park, staff has solicited bids to 

spread the dirt berm across the adjacent vacant land.  The required Erosion and Control Permits have been obtained 

from the State Land Resources Division of the DEQ and the costs include installing the appropriate erosion control 

devices.  The lowest bid was submitted by CountryScapes Landscaping. 

 

 
 

Motion approve bid award to low bidder CountryScapes Landscaping for $93,609. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 77

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
07

20
  (

28
60

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
D

ec
em

b
er

 7
, 2

02
0)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 7, 2020 

ITEM 13.  BOARD APPOINTMENTS         

 

A. NCACC Legislative Goals Conference Delegate 

 

The NCACC Legislative Goals Conference will be held by virtual platform Thursday and Friday, January 14-15, 

2021. Each county will be entitled to vote on legislative goal proposal submissions brought before the membership. 

In order to facilitate the voting process, each county is requested to designate one voting delegate and an alternate 

prior to the Legislative Goals Conference.   

 

Motion to appoint Chairman Tom White as voting delegate to the NCACC Legislative Goals Conference. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

Motion to appoint Vice Chairman Ross Munro as alternate delegate to the NCACC Legislative Goals 

Conference. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tom White 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

B. Advisory Board Commissioner Appointments 

 

After a brief discussion the following appointments were approved by consensus. 

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 78

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
07

20
  (

28
60

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
D

ec
em

b
er

 7
, 2

02
0)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 7, 2020 

ITEM 14.  CONSENT AGENDA          

 

A. Budget Amendments 

 

   
 

   
 

 

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 79

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
07

20
  (

28
60

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
D

ec
em

b
er

 7
, 2

02
0)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 7, 2020 

   
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 80

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
07

20
  (

28
60

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
D

ec
em

b
er

 7
, 2

02
0)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 7, 2020 

B. School Budget Amendments 

 

   
 

   
 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 81

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
07

20
  (

28
60

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
D

ec
em

b
er

 7
, 2

02
0)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 7, 2020 

   
 

   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 82

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
07

20
  (

28
60

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
D

ec
em

b
er

 7
, 2

02
0)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 7, 2020 

C. Tax Collection Report 

 

 
 

D. DMV Monthly Report 

 

 
 

 

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 83

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
07

20
  (

28
60

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
D

ec
em

b
er

 7
, 2

02
0)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 7, 2020 

E. Refunds Over $100 

 

 
 

F. Vehicle Refunds Over $100 

 

 
 

G. Pickups, Releases & Refunds 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 84

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
07

20
  (

28
60

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
D

ec
em

b
er

 7
, 2

02
0)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 7, 2020 

 
 

H. Surplus Property – NC Cooperative Extension 

 

Item Disposal Method Suggested Value Reason for Surplus 

Pottery Kiln Donate to Arts of the 

Albemarle 

$750 No longer use. 

Pottery Wheels (2) Donate to Arts of the 

Albemarle 

$200 No longer use. 

 

I. Set Public Hearing for January 4, 2021 – Camden Station Major Subdivision 

J. Set Public Hearing for January 4, 2021 – UDO Text Amendment  

 

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

ITEM 15.  INFORMATION, REPORTS & MINUTES FROM OTHER AGENCIES    

 

The following was provided for information purposes: 

A. Register of Deeds Report 

B. Library Report 

 

ITEM 16.  COUNTY MANAGER’S REPORT        

 

County Manager Ken Bowman included the following in his report: 

• The Board of Commissioners and Board of Education will meet jointly at 11:45 AM to receive annual 

updates and discuss upcoming projects. 

• Milltown Boat Ramp Ribbon Cutting – Thursday, December 10th at 1:00 PM. 

• Stay safe, continue to social distance due to COVID.   

• Next Board of Commissioners Meeting – January 4, 2021; 7:00 PM 

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 85

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
07

20
  (

28
60

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
D

ec
em

b
er

 7
, 2

02
0)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 7, 2020 

ITEM 17.  COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS         

 

None.   

 

South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors 

 

Chairman White recessed the meeting of the Board of Commissioners and called to order the South Camden Water 

& Sewer District Board of Directors Meeting. 

 

Public Comments – None 

 

Consideration of the Agenda 

 

Motion to approve the agenda as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

New Business 

 

A. Monthly Report – Ken Bowman 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 86

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
07

20
  (

28
60

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
D

ec
em

b
er

 7
, 2

02
0)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 7, 2020 

 

 
 

Motion to approve the monthly report as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

There being no further matters for discussion Chairman Tom White called for a motion to adjourn. 

 

Motion to adjourn the South Camden Water & Sewer Board of Directors. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

Chairman Tom White reconvened the Board of Commissioners. 

 

ITEM 18.  CLOSED SESSION – ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT      

 

Motion to go into Closed Session to discuss Economic Development. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

Motion to come out of Closed Session.   

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

Motion to set Public Hearing for January 4, 2021 for sale of building situated within the Camden Medical 

Park. 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 87

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
07

20
  (

28
60

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
D

ec
em

b
er

 7
, 2

02
0)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 7, 2020 

RESULT: PASSED [4-0] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs 

AYES: Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

RECUSED: Tom White 

 

ITEM 19.  RECESS           

 

There being no further matters for discussion, Chairman Tom White recessed the Board of Commissioners until 

11:45 AM, at which time the Board will reconvene at Camden Middle School for a joint meeting with the Board of 

Education.   

 

 

       ATTEST: 

 

 

             

Tom White, Chairman     Karen M. Davis 

Camden County Board of Commissioners   Clerk to the Board 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 88

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
07

20
  (

28
60

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
D

ec
em

b
er

 7
, 2

02
0)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.B 

Meeting Date:   January 04, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   BOC/BOE Joint Meeting Minutes - December 7, 2020 

 

Attachments: bocboeminutes_120720 (DOCX) 

 

8.B

Packet Pg. 89



 

Camden County Board of Education 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 7, 2020 

Camden County Board of Commissioners  

Camden County Board of Education 

Joint Meeting 

December 7, 2020; 11:45 AM 

Camden County Middle School Auditorium 

 

Call to Order 

A joint meeting of the Camden County Board of Commissioners and Camden County Board of Education was 

called to order by the respective Chairmen at 11:45 AM in the auditorium of Camden Middle School.  The primary 

purpose of the meeting was to receive project updates and discuss plans for the new high school. 

 

Board Members Present 

Board of Commissioners: Chairman Tom White, Vice Chairman Ross Munro, Commissioners Clayton Riggs, 

Randy Krainiak, and Tiffney White. 

 

Camden County Board of Education: Chairman Christian Overton, Vice Chairman Jason Banks, Board Members 

Kevin Heath and Chris Purcell.  Board Member Sissy Aydlett was absent. 

 

Consideration of the Agenda 

Camden County Board of Commissioners – A motion was offered by Commissioner Krainiak to approve the agenda 

as presented.  The motion carried unanimously with five members voting aye and no member voting no.   

 

Camden County Board of Education - A motion was offered by Chris Purcell and seconded by Jason Banks to 

approve the agenda as presented.  The motion carried unanimously with four members voting aye and no member 

voting no and one member absent. 

 

Presentations 

1. County Manager Ken Bowman  

 

2020-2021 Budget 

• Strive to maintain the same budget projections adopted in 2019-2020. 

• No tax increase. 

• Staff 2% COLA. 

• Continue to minimize the financial impact of county operations on its citizens through mindful 

budgeting and frugal expenditures. 

• Fund capital goals as indicated in the Capital Improvement Plan. 

 

Camden Commerce Park Upgrades 

• Albemarle Electric – Installation of 3-phase power along Opportunity Drive and six security lights 

at a cost of $82,125.18 

• Eastern Carolina Engineering - Prepared RFP for bids to place drainage pipes and construct 300-

foot gravel road into property identified on right side of main entrance. 

• There are currently two bids in to extend the main road to Lot 14, where Southeastern Equipment 

will be located.  There are also bids in to spread out the topsoil (berm) that needs to be removed. 

• The logging on Mr. Fink’s property has been completed and paving will be completed to the 

property when the contractor starts work on the road extension to Lot 14. 

• Design of a new market brochure. 

 

Southeastern Equipment 

• Property is 16+ acres (lot 14) at the rear of Commerce Park. 

8.B.a

Packet Pg. 90

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cb

o
em

in
u

te
s_

12
07

20
  (

28
82

 :
 B

O
C

/B
O

E
 J

o
in

t 
M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

D
ec

em
b

er
 7

, 2
02

0)



 

Camden County Board of Education 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 7, 2020 

• The sales agreement has been reviewed by the attorneys and a closing date is being established 

before the end of this year. 

 

Mangum Transportation 

• Mangum has leased 10 acres from the County with an intent to purchase within the next 36 

months. 

• Placed a new sign with their company name of the righthand side as you drive into Commerce 

Park. 

• The stormwater plan has been drafted by Mangum’s engineers and is in the review phase by 

County Staff. 

 

Library 

• The final design for the library with Boomerang Design of Raleigh, NC is almost complete. 

• Funding has been approved at $3.6M and financing is being coordinated by the County Financial 

Consultant, First Tryon, in Charlotte. 

• Target date for completion is September 2021. 

 

Medical Building 

• The County has received a contract for the purchase of the former Medical Building.   

• This will be placed on the January 2021 Board of Commissioners meeting agenda for a Public 

Hearing. 

 

CARES Funding 

• County allocated a total of $630K.  To date, approximately $460K has been distributed. 

• Staff is currently working on facility upgrades, improved technology, radios/pagers for Sheriff and 

Fire Departments and PPE supplies. 

• Approximately $160K went to small businesses. 

• Camden County Schools received $50K. 

• Emergency Management received $15K. 

 

Eastern Shore Communications (Broadband) 

• Materials on site for the construction of the fiber from Shipyard Road to the north water tower 

located at 694 US 343. 

• Raised platforms have been constructed at the water tower for the installation of the backup 

generator. 

• Tankcare is working on the antenna construction for the water tower which will be welded to the 

tower. 

• The company has agreements with many of the owners of the grain elevators along 343 for 

installation of our fixed wireless equipment.  

 

New High School 

• Facility study completed by M.B. Kahn and information was shared with the Board of 

Commissioners and Board of Education. 

• School has received $12.3M grant. 

• Bond referendum passed November 3, 2020. 

 

 

 

 

8.B.a

Packet Pg. 91

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cb

o
em

in
u

te
s_

12
07

20
  (

28
82

 :
 B

O
C

/B
O

E
 J

o
in

t 
M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

D
ec

em
b

er
 7

, 2
02

0)



 

Camden County Board of Education 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 7, 2020 

2. Superintendent Dr. Joe Ferrell 

 

The focus of my presentation is narrower but as a reminder Ken mentioned the budget season for the 2020-21 SY 

and we are about to go into that again for the 2021-22 SY but as a reminder, focusing on capital, we always reach 

out to our schools and ask for their capital needs.  We typically get things like radio replacements and repairs, 

general painting, gym floor maintenance is always something needed, HVAC, drainage issues on playgrounds, 

roofing issues, etc.  We also get some special request like kindergarten teachers may need cabinets built in their 

classrooms or they are trying to do some smart TV project on a hallway or something like that, so we take all of 

those things into consideration and put together a capital request. As a reminder to both boards, this is something 

that changes every year and depends on what the needs are.  Sometimes it is higher and sometimes it is lower.  Last 

year, we had approximately $600,000 of requests and you were gracious enough to give us $405,000 of our 

requests.  What we do then is we go back and prioritize which of those things need to be done most critically.  And 

those things that we can’t get to in a school year because of a difference in funding, we will move to a priority list 

for the following year and so ultimately all of those projects eventually get completed.   

A couple of things that are extremely important I think to mention this year that have already been taken care of, we 

are already working on the upgrades at CECHS and those upgrades include adding student restrooms inside the 

facility and also enclosing those breezeway type setups between each building so that when anyone enters at the 

front of the school near the front office there is a long hallway through all of the buildings keeping someone we do 

not want inside the building from just walking up to one of those breezeway type areas and just walking inside the 

building.  They do have fire exits or emergency exit doors there with a push bar so students can go out through the 

doors if there is an emergency but they cannot come back in those doors because they close and lock.  The $90,000 

that you included for chrome book specific upgrades, some of that has been completed this year and some has not 

and that is simply a supply issue.  But those things will be completed before the end of the year.   

Obviously, Mr. Bowman just mentioned that of the County’s CARES Act funding, the schools were given $50,000.  

That money went directly to each school.  $10,000 was given to each school for the purpose of connectivity and 

buying student devices.  So we are very grateful for that.  We were able to use that plus some of the CARES Act 

funding that the school system received directly to give each school around $20,000 to increase the number of 

student devices which now because of COVID is more critical than ever.   

Some things that remain to be done on the list because we are just getting to the half way part of the school year, 

one of the most critical things is fire alarm system upgrades that will be done prior to the end of the school year.   

With that, I will ask Larry Lawrence if there is anything he would like to add.   

Mr. Lawrence thanked the Commissioners for what they do to help keep our schools the best that they can be.  Dr. 

Ferrell agreed.   

Dr. Ferrell continued.  Visitors talk about the great job that this county has done with maintaining our current 

facilities.  People are often amazed at how great our schools look so thank you to the Boards for that and thank you 

to Larry and his staff as well.  Of course, the big capital project that I suppose is on everyone’s mind right now is 

the new high school project.  Ken has already given you an update or reminder of how all of that played out.  As he 

said, on November 3rd, the bond referendum did pass with 4,147 yes votes to 1,530 no votes so that brings us to 

where we are today.   

Dr. Ferrell asked if there were any questions for him.  There were no questions.  He then turned the meeting over to 

Rick Ott to discuss the new high school project. 

 

 

8.B.a

Packet Pg. 92

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cb

o
em

in
u

te
s_

12
07

20
  (

28
82

 :
 B

O
C

/B
O

E
 J

o
in

t 
M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

D
ec

em
b

er
 7

, 2
02

0)



 

Camden County Board of Education 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 7, 2020 

3. Rick Ott, MB Kahn and Ashley Dennis, Moseley Architects and Associates 

 

Project History 

• Completed facility study in September 2019 – Replacing the high school is the most efficient and 

cost-effective solution for growing enrollment and will benefit every school in the district. 

• The district spent more than 11 months developing an educational program. 

• Existing Camden County High School – Enrollment approximately 600 students; facility size 

approximately 81,500 square feet. 

New High School & Early College – Enrollment 600 students; 800 Core; total facility size is 

128,050 square feet. 

 

 Multiple Reductions 

• Initial Proposed – 159,445 square feet 

• First Reduction – 140,585 square feet 

• Second Reduction – 130,263 square feet 

• Third Reduction – 128,050 square feet 

Total Reductions to date – 31,395 square feet (20%) 

 

Reductions Included 

• Classroom Sizes • Science Labs 

• Auditorium • Choral Room 

• Extended Instructional Areas • Band Room 

• Reception Area • Technology Rooms 

• Administrative Offices • Media Center 

• Records Area • Studio/Media Production 

• Conference Rooms • Gymnasium / Auxiliary Gymnasium 

• Storage • Locked Areas 

• Health Clinic 

 

• Kitchen 

 

 Current Budget 

• Building Cost - $31,932,876 

• Site Development - $4,000,000 

• Athletics Allowance - $2,500,000 

• Add Alternate Auxiliary Gymnasium - $2,050,000 

• Engineering/Architect Fees (Portion of Technical Fees - $2,488,724 

• Bond Counsel Feeds - $100,000 

• Other Legal/Fiscal Fees - $100,000 

• Administrative (Portion of Technical Fees) - $387,700 

• Contingency - $778,100 

• Other (Furnishings & Technology Allowance) - $950,000 

Total Projected Cost - $45,287,400 

Off-Site Improvements (reimbursable by DOT) - $840,000 

 

Project Financing Plan 

• Approved Funding - $45,287,400 

➢ Successful 2020 Bond Referendum - $33,000,000 

➢ Financial Models Considers 30-Year USDA Loan 

• Needs-Based Public School Capital Fund 

➢ $12,287,400 

• Other Potential State Initiatives 

 

Financing Requirements 

• NBPSCF Grant 

➢ Execution of Agreement 

➢ Prepare Required Reporting 

➢ Meet all state design and review standards 

8.B.a

Packet Pg. 93

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cb

o
em

in
u

te
s_

12
07

20
  (

28
82

 :
 B

O
C

/B
O

E
 J

o
in

t 
M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

D
ec

em
b

er
 7

, 2
02

0)



 

Camden County Board of Education 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 7, 2020 

• USDA Rural Development 

➢ 40-year maximum term allowed – financial models use 30-year term 

➢ $100,000,000 maximum loan guarantee allowed through third-party lender 

➢ Immediate coordination recommended 

➢ Historic low interest rates 

➢ Requires Construction Loan before permanent financing 

• State Grant funds will be drawn down first along with $ match. 

 

Project Overview 

• Program to support 600 students / 800 core capacity 

• Main entrance off of Highway 343 

• Three academic pods clustered around collaborative extended learning areas that open directly to 

the exterior 

• Space for future expansion will be incorporated into the design 

• Athletic fields and student parking to the rear of the site 

• School site will serve as a County Emergency Shelter 

• Review of Preliminary Site Plan and Preliminary Floor Plan 

• Review of Cash Flow 

 

Design Meeting / Milestones 

• The team will conduct a series of meetings and adjacency workshops in December and January 

with administrators, teachers, and students. 

• Schematic Design – January 2021 

• Design Development – April 2021 

• Early Site Package – April 2021 

• Groundbreaking – May 2021 

• Construction Documents – August 2021 

• Final Design Approval – September 2021 

 

Review of Management Schedule 

 

Next Steps 

• Complete preliminary site investigation 

• Confirm funding approach 

• Conduct design meetings with stakeholders 

• Continue schematic design 

• Owner approval at each phase of design 

 

4. David Cheatwood, First Tryon Advisors (via video call) 

 

8.B.a

Packet Pg. 94

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cb

o
em

in
u

te
s_

12
07

20
  (

28
82

 :
 B

O
C

/B
O

E
 J

o
in

t 
M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

D
ec

em
b

er
 7

, 2
02

0)



 

Camden County Board of Education 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 7, 2020 

 
 

 
 

 

 

8.B.a

Packet Pg. 95

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cb

o
em

in
u

te
s_

12
07

20
  (

28
82

 :
 B

O
C

/B
O

E
 J

o
in

t 
M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

D
ec

em
b

er
 7

, 2
02

0)



 

Camden County Board of Education 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 7, 2020 

 
 

 

8.B.a

Packet Pg. 96

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cb

o
em

in
u

te
s_

12
07

20
  (

28
82

 :
 B

O
C

/B
O

E
 J

o
in

t 
M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

D
ec

em
b

er
 7

, 2
02

0)



 

Camden County Board of Education 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 7, 2020 

 
 

 

8.B.a

Packet Pg. 97

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cb

o
em

in
u

te
s_

12
07

20
  (

28
82

 :
 B

O
C

/B
O

E
 J

o
in

t 
M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

D
ec

em
b

er
 7

, 2
02

0)



 

Camden County Board of Education 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 7, 2020 

 
 

Some of the discussion included a question by Board of Education Member Chris Purcell on why the USDA loan 

option was chosen over the private option.  Mr. Cheatwood explained that the private option requires a 20-year term 

and the USDA option allows a 30-year term.  The private option results in a higher tax impact. 

 

There was also some discussion concerning the amount of net tax received versus the net tax available for debt 

service.  After a number of questions were raised, it was decided that a meeting be scheduled with USDA and Mr. 

Cheatwood to further clarify the financing options.  

 

There being no further matters for discussion Board of Education Chairman Christian Overton called for a motion to 

adjourn.  A motion to adjourn was offered by Chris Purcell and seconded by Jason Banks.  The motion carried 

unanimously with four members voting aye, no member voting no and one member absent. 

 

Commissioner Clayton Riggs offered a motion to adjourn the Board of Commissioners.  The motion carried 

unanimously with five members voting aye and no member voting no. 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 1:34 PM. 

 

      ATTEST: 

 

 

           

Tom White, Chairman    Karen M. Davis 

Camden County Board of Commissioners  Clerk to the Board 

8.B.a

Packet Pg. 98

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cb

o
em

in
u

te
s_

12
07

20
  (

28
82

 :
 B

O
C

/B
O

E
 J

o
in

t 
M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

D
ec

em
b

er
 7

, 2
02

0)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.C 

Meeting Date:   January 04, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Stephanie Jackson, HR Director 

 Finance 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Budget Amendments 

 

Attachments: Budget Amendment SRO (PDF) 

20-21 BA 017  Elections for Grant monies

 (DOC) 

 

8.C

Packet Pg. 99



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 100

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t 
S

R
O

  (
28

78
 :

 B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



                                                       2020-21-BA017 

CAMDEN COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the County of Camden, North Carolina 

that the following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year 

ending June 30, 2021. 

 

Section 1.  To amend the General Fund as follows: 

 

                 AMOUNT   

ACCT NUMBER           DESCRIPTION OF ACCT            INCREASE     DECREASE 

     

Revenues  

10330430-434898 Grant Revenues     $36,203.22 

 

 

Expenses  

104300-503000 PT Salaries                                              $  1,858.20 

104300-501100 Election Officials                                    $  3,600.00                  

104300-532000 Office Supplies                                       $  3,561.62 

104300-511000 Telephone & Postage                              $     670.55 

104300-512000 Printing                                                   $     933.69 

104300-521000 Rental of Buildings                                 $    655.16 

104300-550200 Election Grant                                         $25,924.00 

 

 

This Budget Amendment is made to appropriate additional monies through expenses that 

Elections received through numerous State grant funding opportunities.  

 

 

This will result in no change to the Contingency of the General Fund. 

 

Balance in Contingency  $40,000.00 

 

 

Section 2.  Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk to the  

Governing Board and to the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction.  

Adopted this 4th day of January, 2021. 

 

       

______________________________ _________________________________  

  

Clerk to Board of Commissioners    Chairman, Board of Commissioners 

 

8.C.b

Packet Pg. 101

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

0-
21

 B
A

 0
17

  E
le

ct
io

n
s 

fo
r 

G
ra

n
t 

m
o

n
ie

s 
 (

28
78

 :
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.D 

Meeting Date:   January 04, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Schools 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   School Budget Amendments 

 

Attachments: School Budget Amendments (PDF) 

 

8.D

Packet Pg. 102



8.D.a

Packet Pg. 103

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

28
65

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.D.a

Packet Pg. 104

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

28
65

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.D.a

Packet Pg. 105

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

28
65

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.D.a

Packet Pg. 106

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

28
65

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.D.a

Packet Pg. 107

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

28
65

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.D.a

Packet Pg. 108

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

28
65

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.D.a

Packet Pg. 109

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

28
65

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.D.a

Packet Pg. 110

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

28
65

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.D.a

Packet Pg. 111

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

28
65

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.D.a

Packet Pg. 112

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

28
65

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.D.a

Packet Pg. 113

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

28
65

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.D.a

Packet Pg. 114

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

28
65

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.D.a

Packet Pg. 115

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

28
65

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.D.a

Packet Pg. 116

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

28
65

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.E 

Meeting Date:   January 04, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Tax Collection Report 

 

Attachments: Tax Collection Report (PDF) 

 

8.E

Packet Pg. 117



8.E.a

Packet Pg. 118

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 C

o
lle

ct
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

28
67

 :
 T

ax
 C

o
lle

ct
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.F 

Meeting Date:   January 04, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Teri Smith, 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Teri Smith 

 
Item Title   DMV Monthly Report 

 

Attachments: DMV Monthly Report Feb, 2021 Renewals (PDF) 

 

Summary:   DMV Monthly Report February, 2021 Renewals Due 3/15/2020 

 

Recommendation:   Review and Approve 

8.F

Packet Pg. 119



8.F.a

Packet Pg. 120

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

M
V

 M
o

n
th

ly
 R

ep
o

rt
 F

eb
, 2

02
1 

R
en

ew
al

s 
 (

28
77

 :
 D

M
V

 M
o

n
th

ly
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.G 

Meeting Date:   January 04, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Teri Smith, 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Teri Smith 

 
Item Title   Refunds Over $100.00 

 

Attachments: Refunds Over $100.00 December, 2020 (PDF) 

 

Summary:   Refunds Over $100.00 

 

Recommendation:   Review and Approve 

8.G

Packet Pg. 121



8.G.a

Packet Pg. 122

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ef
u

n
d

s 
O

ve
r 

$1
00

.0
0 

D
ec

em
b

er
, 2

02
0 

 (
28

81
 :

 R
ef

u
n

d
s 

O
ve

r 
$1

00
.0

0)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.H 

Meeting Date:   January 04, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Pickups, Releases & Refunds 

 

Attachments: Pickups, Releases & Refunds (PDF) 

 

8.H

Packet Pg. 123



8.H.a

Packet Pg. 124

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ic
ku

p
s,

 R
el

ea
se

s 
&

 R
ef

u
n

d
s 

 (
28

79
 :

 P
ic

ku
p

s,
 R

el
ea

se
s 

&
 R

ef
u

n
d

s)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.I 

Meeting Date:   January 04, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Community Services Block Grant 

 

Attachments: CSBG FY2021-22 Application for Funding (PDF) 

 
Summary: 

The North Carolina Administrative Code requires that each CSBG grant recipient submit its 

Community Anti-Poverty Plan (grant application) to each County Commissioner Board that it 

serves.  

Recommendation: 

Review the plan and provide any comments regarding the plan to the Clerk for 

submittal to the Office of Economic Opportunity. 

8.I

Packet Pg. 125



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 126

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 127

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 128

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 129

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 130

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 131

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 132

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 133

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 134

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 135

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 136

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 137

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 138

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 139

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 140

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 141

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 142

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 143

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 144

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 145

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 146

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 147

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 148

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 149

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 150

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 151

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 152

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 153

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 154

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 155

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 156

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 157

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 158

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 159

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 160

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 161

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 162

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 163

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 164

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 165

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 166

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 167

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 168

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 169

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 170

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 171

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 172

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 173

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 174

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 175

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 176

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 177

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 178

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 179

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 180

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 181

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 182

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 183

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 184

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 185

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 186

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 187

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 188

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 189

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 190

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 191

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 192

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 193

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 194

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 195

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 196

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 197

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 198

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 199

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 200

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 201

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 202

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 203

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 204

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 205

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
B

G
 F

Y
20

21
-2

2 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

28
61

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.J 

Meeting Date:   January 04, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Donna Stewart, Visitor Center Director 

 Dismal Swamp Welcome Center 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Surplus Property 

 

Attachments: Surplus Request - DSWC (PDF) 

 

8.J

Packet Pg. 206



8.J.a

Packet Pg. 207

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
rp

lu
s 

R
eq

u
es

t 
- 

D
S

W
C

  (
28

73
 :

 S
u

rp
lu

s 
P

ro
p

er
ty

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 11.A 

Meeting Date:   January 04, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Tammie Krauss, Register of Deeds 

 Register of Deeds 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Register of Deeds Report 

 

Attachments: Register of Deeds Report (PDF) 

 

11.A

Packet Pg. 208



11.A.a

Packet Pg. 209

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s 

R
ep

o
rt

  (
28

71
 :

 R
eg

is
te

r 
o

f 
D

ee
d

s 
R

ep
o

rt
)



11.A.a

Packet Pg. 210

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s 

R
ep

o
rt

  (
28

71
 :

 R
eg

is
te

r 
o

f 
D

ee
d

s 
R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 11.B 

Meeting Date:   January 04, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Kim Perry, 

 Library 

 Prepared by: Kim Perry 

 
Item Title   Library Report 12/2020 

 

Attachments: 20-11 (DOCX) 

 

11.B

Packet Pg. 211



Camden County Public Library 

NOVEMBER 2020 Statistics 
Library Closed to the Public November 1-17 due to COVID-19, Reopened November 18 

 

Visitor Count 141 

Materials Check Outs & Renewals 1,536 

Computer/ Wireless Use 6/171 

Questions Answered 43 

Children’s Programs/Attendance 0/0 

Adult Programs/Attendance 0/0 

Outreach Programs/Attendance 0/0 

Meeting Room Usage/Attendance 4/45 

Days/Hours Open 0/0 

# Items in Collection 19,667 

Library Card Holders 2,716 

Curbside Pickups 63 

 

Comparison by Year 

2018-2020 

  
           

 

 

  

1843

1599

141

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

1800

2000

2018 Nov 2019 Nov 2020  Nov

Attendance

3738

3116

1536

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

2018 Nov 2019 Nov 2020 Nov

Circulation

11.B.a

Packet Pg. 212

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

0-
11

  (
28

83
 :

 L
ib

ra
ry

 R
ep

o
rt

 1
2/

20
20

)



In attempting to follow the Phase II guidelines of Governor Cooper’s plan to safely reopen our state during the COVID-

19 crisis: 

• The Library was closed to the public and staffed Monday-Friday 9 am – 5 pm, closed Saturday and Sunday 

November 1-17, and reopened to the public on November 18. 

• Library staff continues to assist patrons remotely, answer phone calls, and complete professional 

responsibilities. 

• The Library continues to offer Curbside Check-out & Print and Copy services for our patrons. 

The Library reopened to the public on 11/18/20 with the following guidelines in place: 

Patrons: 

• We will practice and stress the 3W’s - Wear, Wait, Wash. 

• Masks required as per Governor’s order for entry and we will have disposable masks available for patrons who enter 

without one. 

• Limit visit to 1 hour. 

• Limit number of patrons and staff to 20 in the building at once. 

• Limit Children’s Room to one family group at a time.  

• We will continue to offer Curbside Service to all patrons. 

Facilities: 

• A plexiglass divider has been installed at the Circulation Desk. 

• Markers on the floor will visibly display proper 6 ft. social distance. 

• One women’s restroom and one men’s restroom will be open, staff will use restroom in meeting room. 

• Water fountains will be closed. 

• All public seating will be removed. 

• Meeting Room continues to be closed to the public. 

• Re-shelfing bins will be available in all sections, patrons will be urged to place unwanted materials in the bins. 

• Set up station near entry with hand sanitizer, wipes, and masks. 

• Cleaning wipes will be available at the computer stations. 

• Computer use will be scheduled, 1 hour at a time. 

• 6 public use computers will be open (2 may be reserved by appointment), plexiglass dividers installed, and stations are 6 ft. 

apart. Unmasked patrons may not use the public computers. 

• Children’s room will be emptied of all manipulatives. 

Materials: 

• Continue 72-hour quarantine for all returned materials. 

• Quarantine materials that have been handled by patrons in the library. 

Staff: 

• Daily self-temperature check and self-assessment regarding exposure, signs, and symptoms. 

• Masked while handling library materials, when in public areas, and near co-workers if social distance cannot be maintained. 

• Gloves and sanitizer are available. 

Schedule: 

• Monday-Friday operation. 

o 9:00 am – 1:00 pm, Open to the public 

o 1:00 – 2:00 pm, Closed for cleaning 

o 2:00 – 5:00 pm, Open to the public 

• Closed on the weekends until further notice. 

Notes: 

11.B.a

Packet Pg. 213

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

0-
11

  (
28

83
 :

 L
ib

ra
ry

 R
ep

o
rt

 1
2/

20
20

)



• Ashley Stoop and Sherry East of Albemarle Regional Health Service reviewed and approved this plan.  

• The Library will reopen on Wednesday, 11/18/20 at 9:00 a.m. 

• The Library will be cleaned daily. 

• Library staff will greet patrons upon entry. Unmasked patrons will be offered a mask and counseled to follow our 

expectations. Library staff will offer Curbside Service to patrons who cannot comply with the mask mandate. County 

Administration and the Sheriff’s Department will support the mask mandate. 

• We will reevaluate the decision to remain open to the public weekly. Possible conditions to return to Curbside Only Service 

include but are not limited to: 

o the State moves toward greater COVID restrictions 

o we experience a local increase in cases/infection rates/hospitalizations 

o staff member(s) contract COVID-19 

 

11.B.a

Packet Pg. 214

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

0-
11

  (
28

83
 :

 L
ib

ra
ry

 R
ep

o
rt

 1
2/

20
20

)


	Agenda Packet
	Welcome & Call to Order
	Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance
	Chief Deputy Rodney Meads - Camden County Sheriff's Office

	1. Public Comments
	2. Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement
	3. Consideration of Agenda
	4. Presentations
	A. 2874 : Sheriff Kevin Jones
	Printout: 2874 : Sheriff Kevin Jones


	Recess to South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors
	Reconvene Board of Commissioners
	5. Public Hearings
	A. 2872 : Sale of Former Medical Park Building
	Printout: 2872 : Sale of Former Medical Park Building
	a. Performance Agreement-Final (1) (version 4)

	B. 2863 : Text Amendment Urban Open Space
	Printout: 2863 : Text Amendment Urban Open Space
	a. Agenda Summary Urban Open Space
	b. DiscussionItemVillageResidentialDistrict (002)
	c. Text Amendment Urban Open SpaceOrdinance2020-12-01

	C. 2862 : Preliminary Plan Camden Station Major Subdivision
	Printout: 2862 : Preliminary Plan Camden Station Major Subdivision
	a. Agenda Summary Camden Station Approval
	b. Ordinance Camden Station Subdivision


	6. New Business
	A. 2880 : Tax Report
	Printout: 2880 : Tax Report
	a. Tax Report

	B. 2864 : Camden County Code of Ordinances - Chapter 70 Revision
	Printout: 2864 : Camden County Code of Ordinances - Chapter 70 Revision
	a. Agenda Summary Repeal and Replace Chapter 70 (003)
	b. CHAPTER 70 Revised Dec 14 2020 Clean Golf Cart


	7. Board Appointments
	A. 2870 : Tourism Development Authority
	Printout: 2870 : Tourism Development Authority

	B. 2869 : Adult Care Home Community Advisory Committee
	Printout: 2869 : Adult Care Home Community Advisory Committee

	C. 2868 : South Camden Fire Commission
	Printout: 2868 : South Camden Fire Commission

	D. 2866 : Regional Advisory Council - Area Agency on Aging
	Printout: 2866 : Regional Advisory Council - Area Agency on Aging
	a. Penny Leary Smith_Regional Advisory Council


	8. Consent Agenda
	A. 2860 : BOC Meeting Minutes - December 7, 2020
	Printout: 2860 : BOC Meeting Minutes - December 7, 2020
	a. bocminutes_120720

	B. 2882 : BOC/BOE Joint Meeting Minutes - December 7, 2020
	Printout: 2882 : BOC/BOE Joint Meeting Minutes - December 7, 2020
	a. bocboeminutes_120720

	C. 2878 : Budget Amendments
	Printout: 2878 : Budget Amendments
	a. Budget Amendment SRO
	b. 20-21 BA 017  Elections for Grant monies

	D. 2865 : School Budget Amendments
	Printout: 2865 : School Budget Amendments
	a. School Budget Amendments

	E. 2867 : Tax Collection Report
	Printout: 2867 : Tax Collection Report
	a. Tax Collection Report

	F. 2877 : DMV Monthly Report
	Printout: 2877 : DMV Monthly Report
	a. DMV Monthly Report Feb, 2021 Renewals

	G. 2881 : Refunds Over $100.00
	Printout: 2881 : Refunds Over $100.00
	a. Refunds Over $100.00 December, 2020

	H. 2879 : Pickups, Releases & Refunds
	Printout: 2879 : Pickups, Releases & Refunds
	a. Pickups, Releases & Refunds

	I. 2861 : Community Services Block Grant
	Printout: 2861 : Community Services Block Grant
	a. CSBG FY2021-22 Application for Funding

	J. 2873 : Surplus Property
	Printout: 2873 : Surplus Property
	a. Surplus Request - DSWC


	9. County Manager's Report
	10. Commissioners' Reports
	11. Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies
	A. 2871 : Register of Deeds Report
	Printout: 2871 : Register of Deeds Report
	a. Register of Deeds Report

	B. 2883 : Library Report 12/2020
	Printout: 2883 : Library Report 12/2020
	a. 20-11


	12. Other Matters
	13. Adjourn

	Appendix
	4.A · 2874 : Sheriff Kevin Jones
	5.A · 2872 : Sale of Former Medical Park Building
	5.A.a · Performance Agreement-Final (1) (version 4)

	5.B · 2863 : Text Amendment Urban Open Space
	5.B.a · Agenda Summary Urban Open Space
	5.B.b · DiscussionItemVillageResidentialDistrict (002)
	5.B.c · Text Amendment Urban Open SpaceOrdinance2020-12-01

	5.C · 2862 : Preliminary Plan Camden Station Major Subdivision
	5.C.a · Agenda Summary Camden Station Approval
	5.C.b · Ordinance Camden Station Subdivision

	6.A · 2880 : Tax Report
	6.A.a · Tax Report

	6.B · 2864 : Camden County Code of Ordinances - Chapter 70 Revision
	6.B.a · Agenda Summary Repeal and Replace Chapter 70 (003)
	6.B.b · CHAPTER 70 Revised Dec 14 2020 Clean Golf Cart

	7.A · 2870 : Tourism Development Authority
	7.B · 2869 : Adult Care Home Community Advisory Committee
	7.C · 2868 : South Camden Fire Commission
	7.D · 2866 : Regional Advisory Council - Area Agency on Aging
	7.D.a · Penny Leary Smith_Regional Advisory Council

	8.A · 2860 : BOC Meeting Minutes - December 7, 2020
	8.A.a · bocminutes_120720

	8.B · 2882 : BOC/BOE Joint Meeting Minutes - December 7, 2020
	8.B.a · bocboeminutes_120720

	8.C · 2878 : Budget Amendments
	8.C.a · Budget Amendment SRO
	8.C.b · 20-21 BA 017  Elections for Grant monies

	8.D · 2865 : School Budget Amendments
	8.D.a · School Budget Amendments

	8.E · 2867 : Tax Collection Report
	8.E.a · Tax Collection Report

	8.F · 2877 : DMV Monthly Report
	8.F.a · DMV Monthly Report Feb, 2021 Renewals

	8.G · 2881 : Refunds Over $100.00
	8.G.a · Refunds Over $100.00 December, 2020

	8.H · 2879 : Pickups, Releases & Refunds
	8.H.a · Pickups, Releases & Refunds

	8.I · 2861 : Community Services Block Grant
	8.I.a · CSBG FY2021-22 Application for Funding

	8.J · 2873 : Surplus Property
	8.J.a · Surplus Request - DSWC

	11.A · 2871 : Register of Deeds Report
	11.A.a · Register of Deeds Report

	11.B · 2883 : Library Report 12/2020
	11.B.a · 20-11





